



Procurement Strategy 2021 - 2026



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS:**

INTRODUCTION	1
SUPPORTING THE DELIVERY OF THE COUNCIL PLAN	1
Other influences on the strategy	2
RESPONSIBILITIES	3
Service Director – Contracts and Technical	3
Service Directors / Service Managers	3
Officer Groups	3
THE STRATEGY	4
Essex Procurement Hub	4
Partnership and Collaboration	4
Regulatory Framework	4
Value for Money	5
Local Suppliers	5
Sustainability and Climate Change	6
Forward Planning	7
Contract and Performance Management	7
e-Procurement	7
ACTION PLAN	8
APPENDIX 1	9
THE PROCEDURAL RULES GOVERNING PROCUREMENT	9
APPENDIX 2	10
ACTION DI AN	10



#### **INTRODUCTION**

Procurement is much more than a narrowly based technical issue. 'Procurement' is the process of acquiring goods, works and services, covering acquisitions from third parties, partnering and from in-house providers. The process spans the whole life cycle from identification of needs, through to the end of a services contract or the end of the useful life of an asset. It involves options appraisal and the critical 'make or buy' decision which may result in the provision of services in-house in appropriate circumstances.

The Procurement Strategy sets out the Council's procurement objectives and principles and describes the contribution that effective procurement will make to the achievement of Epping Forest District Council's vision and corporate priorities. The strategy is supported by an annual action plan and the Council's Procurement Rules.

#### SUPPORTING THE DELIVERY OF THE COUNCIL PLAN

The Procurement Strategy supports the Council's Corporate Plan. At a general level, procurement of goods and services assists in delivering the Council's strategic objectives and statutory responsibilities. At a specific level, this procurement strategy is designed to support the Council's objectives of:

- Ensuring that the Council has appropriate resources, on an ongoing basis, to fund its statutory duties and appropriate discretionary services.
- Ensuring the Council adopts a modern approach to the delivery of its services and that they are efficient, effective and fit for purpose.

It also supports the Council:

- To respond to issues of deprivation in the district: through promoting a consistent approach to equality
  and diversity and reducing inequality in the provision of services and through requiring and promoting
  good practice in equality and diversity in the employment and contracting practices of suppliers and
  partners.
- To maintain and improve the links between the Council, local town centres and the business community: through, to the extent that the EU Procurement Directives, collaborative procurement and value for money allow, sourcing appropriate goods and services through local businesses and promoting the development of local businesses by making the Council easier to do business with.



## Other influences on the strategy

A number of external influences have been taken into account in the preparation of this strategy, including:

- Delivering Value for Money as measured through the annual assessment by the Council's external auditors;
- The Council's duty to promote equality of opportunity in line with the public sector equality guidance.

A number of internal drivers have also been taken into account in the strategy, including:

- The Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Budget 2020/21, which set the framework for a balanced budget over the medium term. Delivering these forecasts will require, amongst other things, delivering real efficiencies, including through improved procurement and sourcing decisions and through improved procurement processes and financial controls.
- The Council's Climate Change Strategy is directed towards reducing the Council's carbon footprint and has included a specific action to update the Procurement Strategy for the inclusion of green and local issues.

The key legislative requirements are set out in:

- Public Contract Regulations 2015
- Equalities Duty Act (2010)
- Localism Act (2011) including Community Right to Bid and Community Right to Challenge
- Public Services (Social Value) Act (2012)
- National Procurement Strategy (2015)



#### **RESPONSIBILITIES**

#### Service Director – Contracts and Technical

As the officer "Procurement Champion" the Service Director is responsible for the updating and maintenance of this strategy and the supporting processes.

The Procurement Champion is responsible for ensuring:

- The strategy is in place, reviewed and updated on a regular basis;
- The strategy is communicated to Directors for implementation;
- The implementation of the strategy to the extent that it mandates compliance with processes and procedures is monitored across services and that an effective reporting system is in place to report breaches or weaknesses to the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee;
- The provision of reports on the effectiveness of the strategy, the performance during the year and any recommendations for improvement to the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee.

## Service Directors / Service Managers

Service Directors and Service Managers are responsible for ensuring that the compliance requirements of the strategy are effectively communicated to their directorates, that the strategy is followed within their directorates and to participate fully in the development and execution of the strategy.

Service Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the provisions of the Constitution regarding Procurement Rules and Financial Regulations are effectively implemented and monitored within their directorates. There is a requirement to have procurement as a standing item on the agenda for all Service Management Team Meetings.

#### Officer Groups

The Procurement and Contracts Working Group is made up of Service Managers/Team Managers from each service and is chaired by the Procurement and Contract Development Team Manager. Meetings are held during the year to disseminate procurement policies and practices across the Council and achieve a more consistent and co-ordinated approach to procurement.



#### THE STRATEGY

Epping Forest District Council will continue its policy of using best practice procurement approaches and processes. This will assist in the delivery of high-quality services to support strategic priorities at good value for money. Long term sustainability will also be promoted, as will the public duties to promote equality of opportunity both within the Council's operations and through the impact of its buying decisions, using effective selection and management of its relationships with its partners and supply chain.

#### **Essex Procurement Hub**

Since October 2006, the Council has been a member of the Essex Procurement Hub, along with Braintree, Castle Point, Maldon and Rochford. The Hub is a group of procurement specialists who are employed by Braintree District Council to provide procurement expertise to the members that subscribe to the service. The Council will promote efficiency in its own processes and improve its impact in promoting change amongst partners and suppliers.

In 2019/20, EFDC's subscription fee for membership of the Hub was £58,420 – this cost was offset by rebates generated by usage of the Hub's frameworks, bringing the actual amount paid down to £30,000 for this extremely beneficial service (during the same period, savings in excess of £350,000 were made which enables more money to be put towards service improvement for the local community and keeping the District's Council Tax low).

## Partnership and Collaboration

As outlined earlier, the Council Corporate Plan recognises that the Council cannot deliver its objectives in isolation and that there is a need to work with other organisations to help improve efficiency and outcomes using the expertise of others. This may include collaboration, partnering and/or the use of consortia arrangements.

One example of this would be the Procurement Alliance for Essex (PAE). The PAE offers a strategic advice service for Essex local authorities. Our strategy is to use the PAE to help identify joint procurement opportunities and best practice procedures across the County.

The Essex Procurement Hub provides both the expertise to assist with individual member's procurement projects and the opportunity for collaboration in areas of mutual benefit. Before any framework contracts are let the requirements of all members are considered to ensure the widest possible relevance and greatest concentration of spending power. The Hub also provides advice on the use of framework contracts established by other purchasing consortia, such as those established by the Pro 5 group (ESPO, YPO, CBC & NEPO) or the <a href="Crown Commercial Services">Crown Commercial Services</a>.

## **Regulatory Framework**

Procurement has to work within a number of controls including EU legislation, the Chartered Institute of Purchasing & Supply's Code of Ethics and internal governance requirements. In addition, the Council has other policies which this strategy seeks to align with.

The key control over procurement activities is the Council's Procurement Rules as set out in the Constitution. These rules are set at levels to assist in achieving value for money and allow decision making at practical levels (summary provided at Appendix 1).

Our strategy is to ensure that our Procurement Rules remain relevant and ensure compliance with EU regulations. Failure to comply with EU regulations could result in contracts being ruled illegal and the Council being subject to significant fines. The Public Contract Regulations 2015 also incorporate the 2014 EU Procurement Regulations into UK Law, and it is vital that EFDC remains up to date and compliant with these regulations.



## Value for Money

A function of procurement is to achieve value for money. We will achieve this by:

- challenging the way things are done and the way services are provided
- by encouraging collaboration with other Essex Procurement Hub members and organisations such as the
  East of England Local Government Association (EELGA) and Crown Commercial Services (CCS) to take
  advantage of increased purchasing power
- taking into account the potential impact of a sustainable approach and balancing price with quality (by using 'whole life costs' for example)

## **Local Suppliers**

Epping Forest DC is committed to encouraging the use of local suppliers wherever possible to boost the local economy and to try to use our spend to create opportunities and added value in the local community, such as local job opportunities and apprenticeships.

Some of the actions we will take to try to achieve this are:

- Ensuring at least 2 local suppliers are invited to bid on all tender opportunities issued by Epping Forest District Council
- Using Social Value elements as evaluation criteria, to ensure greater value is generated for the local area through our spend.
- Ensuring that Local Suppliers are paid within 21 days of receipt of a valid and undisputed invoice, rather than the 30 days set out in the Public Contract Regulations 2015.



### Sustainability and Climate Change

The Procurement Strategy is designed to support the Council's efforts to reduce the Council's carbon footprint and environmental impact, aiming to be Carbon Neutral by 2030. The Council will use its procurement strategy to promote long-term sustainability in its own operations, reduce its carbon footprint through its own services and its supply chain, consistent with meeting value for money criteria.

There are a series of actions to support this approach:

- Include sustainability as a part of our quality evaluation criteria for all relevant projects.
- Look to use whole life costing as pricing evaluation criteria wherever possible, to consider the ongoing
  cost of a product to the Council instead of only purchase costs.
- Educate, train and encourage internal procurers and commissioners to review their consumption of goods/services, reduce usage and adopt more environmentally friendly alternative products
- Consider the costs and benefits of environmentally preferable goods/services as alternatives
- Investigate the impact of the Council's expenditure on goods and services, via purchase spend analysis, to identify potential environmental impacts
- Investigate opportunities for the recycling and re-use of materials where appropriate
- Assess the environmental and corporate risks to the organisation with a commitment to continually improving sustainable performance related to the supply chain
- Work in partnership with other organisations, such as buying consortia to improve sustainable procurement
- Ensure that, where appropriate, suppliers' environmental credentials are, as far as legally practicable, considered in the supplier evaluation process and that environmental and equality and diversity criteria are used in the award of contracts
- Ensure that consideration is given to inclusion, within all specifications, of a facility for suppliers to submit offers for environmentally friendly alternatives
- Specify, wherever possible and practicable, the use of environmentally friendly goods
- Aim to provide goods and services at best value to the Council
- Address barriers to entry to encourage Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs), local suppliers and the voluntary sector to bid for the Council's business
- Educate our suppliers regarding the Council's environmental, sustainability and equality and diversity objectives
- Encourage and persuade suppliers to adopt environmentally friendly processes and supply environmentally friendly goods/services
- Work with key suppliers to make changes and thereby extend sustainability improvements throughout the supply chain
- Comply with all relevant environmental, health & safety, equality and diversity, disability, race relations, social responsibility and employment legislation



#### **Forward Planning**

Forward Planning, particularly of major expenditure, is essential to maximise the potential savings through efficient and effective procurement. Planning annual procurement activity in advance will enable officers to undertake procurement in a more structured manner, identify options and prepare properly.

Specifications should include measurable outputs or outcomes, performance standards or other appropriate measures by which the contract can be assessed.

To plan effectively it is essential to maintain and update where necessary a central Contract Register detailing all contracts in place and all future known procurements, both for renewal of existing period-based contracts and for new future requirements.

## **Contract and Performance Management**

Effective procurement is measured by the outcomes and not by the completion of the process. Contracts must be managed throughout their life to ensure that benefits identified in business cases are delivered. Regular review meetings with incumbent suppliers are crucial in ensuring that set Key Performance Indicators and Service Level Agreements are achieved and maintained.

The Council will expand the use of contract management and build on areas of current best practice. This will involve working closely with both the Essex Procurement Hub and the PAE.

Risk will be managed throughout the procurement cycle to ensure that risks are identified and managed by the most appropriate stakeholder. Risks will be added to service risk registers or the Corporate Risk Register where appropriate. All risks will be revisited at key milestones in the procurement process and throughout the life of the contract.

When suppliers and contractors handle information on behalf of Epping Forest District Council, then we will ensure where possible that equivalent processes are applied or seek to influence our supplier's and contractor's standards.

### e-Procurement

e-Procurement is a tool to enable procurement activities, including sourcing, ordering, commissioning, receipting and making payments for the whole spectrum of an authority's activities. Epping Forest District Council uses the BiP Delta e-Sourcing System to manage its Procurement activities, from issuing, receiving and awarding tenders to ongoing management of its Contract Register. Technology can be used to achieve efficiencies in the procure-to-pay cycle including reduction in cycle time and reduction in transaction costs. This will free resources that can be directed into front line services. The Council also uses an electronic procurement system, the Proactis Marketplace system, to place purchase orders.

## e-Invoicing

Epping Forest District Council has been using the e-invoicing system provided by Proactis since 2016, and now has a large number of suppliers and invoices being processed via this method. Using e-invoicing is a more efficient and automated process, which in turn leads to reduced cost to the Council of invoice processing.



## **ACTION PLAN**

An annual action plan for procurement will be produced. This will set out the key work areas and provide a set of measurable targets for the coming year. Progress against those key work areas is monitored regularly in conjunction with the Essex Procurement Hub. The current action plan is attached at Appendix 2.



**APPENDIX 1** 

## THE PROCEDURAL RULES GOVERNING PROCUREMENT

The Constitution provides guidance on the commissioning of goods and services and is managed through the Procurement Rules and Financial Regulations. Officers are required to adhere to these rules when purchasing on behalf of the Council.

Broadly the guidelines can be summarised as follows:

- 1. A buyer identifies the need to purchase goods/services.
- 2. Before any tender is conducted or order placed, a budget needs to be approved, following Financial Regulations.
- 3. Once a budget has been determined, current contracts and frameworks in place should be reviewed to determine whether a supplier is already available. If in any doubt the buyer should check with the Procurement and Contract Development Team.
- 4. If yes, then the Marketplace Purchase Order Process is followed.
- 5. If no contract or framework is available then the buyer will need to follow the Procurement Rules, which state an informal process is permitted up to £25k, and a tender process should be undertaken with a minimum of three suppliers invited for any spend over £25k, or conducting a full EU tender process (spend on Goods or Services over 4 years of over £189,330 or Works of over £4,733,252 at January 2020 values).
- 6. All contract spend should be assessed on a lifetime value basis.
- 7. Once a contract or framework is in place, buyers should follow the Purchase Order Process to secure the order and record the financial transactions correctly.



# **APPENDIX 2**

# **ACTION PLAN**

Action	Outcome	Lead Officer	Target Date
Continued maintenance of data on the Corporate Contracts Register.	Better planning and co- ordination of procurement activities.	Team Manager – Procurement and Contract Development	Ongoing
Continue to hold Procurement and Contract Working Party meetings.	To disseminate procurement policies and practices across the Council and achieve a more consistent and co-ordinated approach to procurement.	Service Manager - Contracts	Ongoing
Ensure use of Procurement Checklist for all procurement processes, and maintain and update the Checklist on a regular basis.	Greater compliance with Procurement Rules, Financial Regulations and all relevant Procurement Regulations.	Team Manager – Procurement and Contract Development	Ongoing
Review Procurement Rules to ensure they are up to date and fit for purpose.	Updated Contract Procedure Rules in the Constitution. Publicised to staff within Council.	Service Director – Contracts and Technical	January 2021
To encourage use of the Essex Procurement Hub where possible.	Ensuring best value is being obtained in the Council's procurement activities.	Service Manager  - Contracts  Team Manager - Procurement and Contract Development	Ongoing



## APPENDIX 3: Glossary of commonly used procurement terms and acronyms

**Best Value:** Often defined as 'value for money', Best Value is the optimum combination of whole life costs and quality to meet the customer's requirement.

**Collaboration:** In this context, public sector organisations that engage in a joint procurement for works, services or supplies with the intention of obtaining better value for money through economies of scale and reduced tendering costs.

**Commissioning:** Commissioning is a broad concept and there are many definitions, the following definition from the Audit Commission perhaps best captures the key elements of the commissioning tasks: "Commissioning is the process of specifying, securing and monitoring services to meet people's needs at a strategic level".

Competitive Tendering: Awarding contracts following a process of obtaining competing tenders.

Contract: A binding agreement between two or more parties that is enforceable in law.

**Contract Management:** The activities of a buyer before, during and after a contract period to ensure that all parties to the contract fulfil their contractual obligations. An important aspect of this is managing the relationships between all parties in the most effective way so as to ensure the contract meets the optimum combination of cost, time and quality.

(Source: Adapted from CIPS definition in the contracts management Knowledge Summary)

*E-Procurement:* is the ability to purchase/sell through electronic trading via the Internet.

**Evaluation:** A detailed assessment and comparison of offers made by the Council in accordance with published criteria of responses to a request for quotations or tenders.

**Framework Agreement:** A framework agreement is a general term for agreements with suppliers which set out terms and conditions under which specific purchases (call-offs) can be made throughout the term of the agreement.

**Invitation to Tender (ITT):** A formal document inviting an organisation to tender to provide services or, supply goods to or carry out works for the Council. It will include the instructions for submitting a tender, the specification for the requirement, the criteria against which the tender will be assessed, the proposed terms and conditions for the contract and, sometimes, a business questionnaire.

**Key Performance Indicator (KPI):** KPIs are placed against certain elements of a contract or SLA and indicate the items that are to be measured to see of the contractor has achieved the required contract standard.

**MEAT:** Most Economically Advantageous Tender.

**Method Statement:** A document used in the invitation to quote or to tender which sets out specific questions for the bidder to answer to explain to the Council how a service is to be delivered/works to be carried out. It will be evaluated and form a part of the contract.

*Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU):* The on-line publication in which notices advertising a Council tender that fall within the EU thresholds must be placed at the start and end of all the procurement.



**Procurement:** Often used interchangeably with Purchasing. Procurement is the totality of acquisition starting from the identification of a requirement to the disposal of that requirement at the end of its life. It therefore includes pre-contract activities e.g. sourcing and post contract activities e.g. contract management, supplier relationship management activities. Procurement generally relates to goods, works and service(s) requirements.

**Public Procurement Directives:** The EU procurement Directives set out the legal framework for public procurement. They apply when public authorities and utilities seek to acquire goods, services, and works. They set out procedures which must be followed before awarding a contract when its value exceeds set thresholds.

**Quotation:** An offer by a supplier to supply goods or services or to carry out works requested either orally or in writing.

Regulations: The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 that implement the various EU Procurement Directives

**Risk Management:** Involves three key activities, risk analysis, risk assessment, and risk mitigation, all of which facilitate the taking of decisions and actions to control risk appropriately by providing a disciplined and objective approach.

(Source: www.cips.org Knowledge Summary on risk management)

**Selection Questionnaire (SQ):** A document asking the tenderer to provide information about his / her business and experience. Most commonly used in EU level procurements.

**SME:** In this context Small and Medium Enterprises (businesses).

**Specification/Statement of Requirements:** A description of the requirements for the service or of the service to be provided.

**Supplier Relationship Management:** (SRM) is the discipline of strategically planning for, and managing all interactions with contractors that supply goods and/or services in order to increase the value of those interactions. In practice, SRM entails creating closer, more collaborative relationships with key suppliers in order to uncover new value and reduce risk.

**Tender:** The offer submitted by the tenderer in response to the Invitation to Tender.